ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 8, 2007
3:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator CGene Therriaul t

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 69(JUD)
"An Act relating to executive clenmency."”
MOVED SCS CSHB 69(JUD) OQUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 45
"An Act relating to murder in the first degree.”
MOVED CSSB 45(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 69
"An Act relating to the creation of a civil legal services
fund. "

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 64

"An Act relating to the requirenent for candidates, groups,
| egislators, public officials, and other persons to submt
reports electronically to the Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion;
relating to disclosures by legislators, public nenbers of the
Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics, legislative directors,
public officials, and certain candidates for public office
concerning services performed for conpensation and concerning
certain inconme, gifts, and other financial mnmatters; requiring
| egi sl ators, public nenbers of the Select Commttee on
Legislative Ethics, legislative directors, public officials, and
muni ci pal officers to nmake certain financial disclosures when
they leave office; relating to insignificant ownership interest
in a business and to gifts from | obbyists for purposes of the
Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act; relating to certain

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 8, 2007



restrictions on enploynent after leaving state service for
purposes of the Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act; and
providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 5
"An Act relating to reporting of certain crimes."”
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 69

SHORT TITLE: NOTIEY CRI ME VI CTI M OF EXECUTI VE CLEMENCY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) SAMUELS

01/ 16/ 07 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/07

01/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 07 (H) JuD

01/ 22/ 07 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TCL 120

01/ 22/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 22/ 07 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 24/ 07 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TCL 120

01/ 24/ 07 (H) Moved CSHB 69(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

01/ 24/ 07 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 25/ 07 (H JUD RPT CS(JUD) 6DP 1NR

01/ 25/ 07 (H) DP: GRUENBERG, LYNN, DAHLSTROM
SAMUELS, HOLMES, RAMRAS

01/ 25/ 07 (H NR: COGHI LL

01/ 30/ 07 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

01/ 30/ 07 (H) VERSI ON:  CSHB 69( JUD)

01/ 31/ 07 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 31/ 07 (S) JuD

02/ 05/ 07 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 05/ 07 (S -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 08/ 07 (S) JUD AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 45

SHORT TI TLE: PEACE OFFI CER CONVI CTED OF MURDER
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) OLSON

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 12/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (S) STA, JUD

01/ 25/ 07 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

01/ 25/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 25/ 07 (S) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 30/ 07 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 8, 2007



01/ 30/ 07 (S) EXEC. BRANCH ETHI CS: | NTERESTS & ACTI ONS

02/ 01/ 07 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 211

02/ 01/ 07 (S -- Reschedul ed from 01/ 30/ 07 --

02/ 02/ 07 (S) STA RPT CS 4DP 1AM SAME TI TLE
02/ 02/ 07 (S DP: MCGUI RE, STEVENS, GREEN, BUNDE
02/ 02/ 07 (S) AM  FRENCH

02/ 05/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 05/ 07 (S -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 08/ 07 (S) JUD AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 609
SHORT TITLE. ClVIL LEGAL SERVI CES FUND
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

01/ 29/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 29/ 07 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 05/ 07 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 05/ 07 (S -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 08/ 07 (S) JUD AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 64

SHORT TI TLE: DI SCLOSURES & ETHI CS
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 26/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 07 (S) JUD, STA, FIN
02/ 08/ 07 (S) JUD AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 69

Lawr ence Jones, Executive Director

Al aska Board of Parole

Depart ment of Corrections

431 N. Franklin, Suite 400

Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Stated support for HB 69

Susan Sul livan, Executive Director

Victinms for Justice (VFJ)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Stated support for HB 69

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 8, 2007



Ri ck Svobodny, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Crimnal Division

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions regarding HB 69 and
SB 45

Senat or Donal d O son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 45

Loretta Bull ard, President

Kawer ak, | nc.

Nome, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated support for SB 45

Andy Harrington, Executive Director

Al aska Legal Services

1648 Cushman, Suite 300

Fai r banks, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the inportance of SB 69

Doug Wboliver, Admi nistrative Attorney

Al aska Court System

303 K St.

Anchorage, AK 99501-2084

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 69

Davi d Jones, Senior Assistant Attorney General
Cvil Division

Opi ni ons, Appeals, and Ethics

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview of SB 64

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:33:45 PM Present at the call to
or der wer e Senat or McGui r e, Senat or Huggi ns, Senat or
W el echowski, and Chair French. Senator Therriault arrived
shortly thereafter.

CSHB  69(JUD) - NOTI FY _CRI ME VI CTI M OF EXECUTI VE CLEMENCY

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 8, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of HB 69. He asked for
a notion to adopt the \Mconmittee substitute (CS)

SENATOR HUGG NS nmade a notion to adopt Version \M |abeled 25-
LS0317\M as the working docunent. There was no objection.

3:34:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS, Sponsor of HB 69, said the bill is
a choice between several constitutional issues. He read Article
11, Section 21, of the Al aska State Constitution which states
in part:

Subj ect to procedure prescribed by law, the governor
may grant pardons, comrutations, and reprieves, and
may suspend and remt fines and forfeitures. This
power shall not extend to inpeachnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said the conflict is with Article 1,
Section 24 of the Alaska State Constitution. It states in part:

Crime victins, as defined by law, shall have the
following rights as provided by law. ... the right to
be heard, upon request, at sentencing, before or after
conviction or juvenile adjudication, and at any
proceedi ng where the accused’'s release from custody is
consi der ed;

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said HB 69 sinply establishes a procedure
that the governor nust follow in cases of executive clenency.
This is good public policy, he said, and the fundanental crux is
that the victim nust be notified. A governor my choose to
par don soneone, but he or she nust pass the “red face test” and
call the victim He stated.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noted that the bill has changed since it
passed the House. Originally the victimwas notified as part of
the application procedure, but that was changed to accommbdate a
situation where the governor grants a pardon wthout an
appl i cati on havi ng been made.

The House version also said that a victim wuld be notified
regardl ess of whether a request was nade. That |anguage was
cl eaned up, he said. Although the 180 days m ght be questioned,
that is the tinme that the Al aska Board of Parole said it needed
for its review process. He noted that the Departnment of Law
m ght give its perspective on that point.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 8, 2007



3:39: 54 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked where victim notification is located in
the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS sai d page 2, |ine 9 says:

The board shall provide notice of any action taken by
the governor to the Departnent of Law, the office of
victinms’ rights, and the victim

The original legislation said, “If requested by the victim..”
but a pardon could take place 20 years after a crine and soneone
may not have asked to be notified at the tinme. The idea is to
nmake a best effort to notify, he said.

3:40: 57 PM
Senator Therriault arrived.

CHAI R FRENCH comrented that it’'s fair to say that the bill errs
on the side of notification rather than waiting for sonmeone to
ask to be notified.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS agr eed.

3:41:36 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the |anguage about applying for
notification had been renoved because it was problematic.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS replied that |anguage becane irrel evant
because victinms will be notified under any circunstances.

3:42: 20 PM
CHAI R FRENCH opened public testinony.

3:42:48 PM

LAWRENCE JONES, Executive Director, Al aska Board of Parole,
Department of Corrections (DOC), said he nmade |engthy testinony
at the first [House] judiciary hearing; he was quite confortable
with the bill then and is nore so now. He supports the proposed
change in verbiage from “application” to “consideration” and as
a matter of logistics, 180 days is quite adequate. From the
Al aska Board of Parole perspective, the bill wll be quite
wor kabl e, he st at ed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 8, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there is a definition for “victinf
that would be used and if there would be a requirenent that all
famly nmenbers be notifi ed.

MR. JONES replied there is a statutory definition for victim
that is relatively broad. It extends through to the famly if
the victim is deceased and to the parents in the case of a
m nor. Anecdotally the board will make every effort to determ ne
a reasonable cutoff for victimnotification, he said.

3:46: 06 PM

SUSAN SULLI VAN, Executive Director, Victins for Justice (VFJ),
stated strong support for the bill particularly with the recent
changes. She suggested that on page 2, line 7 it mght be nore
consi st ent to wuse the term “consideration” instead of
“application”.

CHAI R FRENCH asked the sponsor to comrent.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the change in termnology mght be a
good idea because under the existing system the governor could
take action w thout an application having been filed.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he tends to agree, but he would
defer to the Departnent of Law.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Svobodny if, on page 2, line 7, it would
be nore desirable to say: “The victim may comrent in witing to
t he board on the consideration for executive clenency.”

3:49:12 PM

RI CHARD SVOBODNY, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Crim nal
Di vision, Departnment of Law (DOL), said he would agree and it is
in conformty with the sponsor’s intent.

3:49: 34 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the governor has to provide notice to
the parole board for an investigation. If an application isn't
part of that process then it should be broadened, he stated.

CHAI R FRENCH asked, for the sake of clarity, if everyone was
strictly considering the case where the governor has sua sponte,
on his or her own, considered granting clenency outside the
normal application process.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the governor would have the power to
grant clemency wi thout interaction with the board.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 8, 2007



MR. SVOBODNY said it’s certainly not unheard of for the
executive to grant clenmency or conmmute sentences wthout a
particul ar application havi ng been nmade.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS said Section 1 states that the governor
may not grant clenmency wthout having provided notice of
consideration to the board of parole. Further in the process, he
said, the board nust notify the victim

CHAIR FRENCH asked if it is fair to say that a governor who
believes that this is a restriction on his or her constitutional
power to grant clenmency would have to challenge the
constitutionality of the statute.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS said HB 69 doesn’'t renove the governor’s
right to grant clenency; it sinply sets up procedures.

3:52:58 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said page 1, lines 6, 9 and 15 tal k about
notice of consideration, so it wuld seem that it would be
consistent to change “application” to “consideration” on page 2,
line 7. He is confortable that the bill is constitutional for a
nunber of reasons. The legislature has the authority to set
procedures and also there is a constitutional provision that
di scusses victins’ rights. He asked the sponsor to touch on
t hat .

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said Article 1, Section 24 lists a nyriad
of rights that victins have including: right to be reasonably
protected from the accused; the right to bail; the right to be
treated with dignity, respect and fairness; the right to a
timely disposition of a case; and the right of the accused to be
present at a crimnal or juvenile proceeding. A governor
woul dn’t be required to follow the procedure, he said, but nore
than likely all would choose to do so.

3:56: 35 PM
SENATOR McGUI RE said the argunent is practical and conpelling,
but the phrase “may not grant” on page 1, line 4 raises a

separation of powers issue. That changes the generous grant
authority and requires a governor to take another step before
executing that power. Wth that in mnd, she suggested placing
the burden on the board and saying, “The board of parole shall
send a notice to the victim irrespective of whether or not the
application has been forwarded to the board.” It’s okay for the
legislature to nmake a direct requirenment on the parole board,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 8, 2007



but requiring the governor to make the extra step is shaky
constitutional ground, she stated.

3:59: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said if the paraneters and procedures
aren’t established, then mdnight pardons won't stop. He noted
that the nunber of days is a concern to sone, but the parole
board said six nonths is a good tinmefrane to review the case
process the application, and contact the victim |If that
presents a constitutional problem then it can be revisited, he
st at ed.

SENATOR MGUIRE said the goal is to keep the law from getting
thrown out so she prefers to take the nost conservative route.
She suggested that keeping the discretionary word “may” in the
bill instead of “ shall”. “You still put the political heat on,
you still wage the public relations canpaign, and you still have
the requirenments on the book and you don't get it thrown out by
a court.” The legislature sinply doesn’'t have the ability to
strap the governor’s hands, she said.

SENATOR W EL ECHOWEKI asked t he DOL opi ni on on t he
constitutionality of the bill.

MR. SVOBCDNY responded, there is an issue of how nuch time it
takes. 180 days represents the first half year in office and the
| ast half year in office so that cuts the governor’s ability to
grant pardons by 25 percent. “l don't think that's correct,” he
said. Nothing says an application nmade during the |ast two weeks
of one governor’s term would not <carry over to the next
gover nor.

The legislature has the authority to establish procedures for
granting pardons and that takes tine. However, it is better to
pick a nunber that everyone is used to so that it is viewed as
procedural rather than cutting into the governor’s authority. *“I
don't know where that line is — whether it’s at 120 days or 60.
| certainly feel nmore confortable in saying it’'s a procedura
issue if it’s 30 days, 45 days, 60 days.

CHAIR FRENCH said his view is that this is a way to harnonize
the victinms’ right anmendnent and governor’s power to grant
cl enency.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the power to pardon runs with the
governor as a person or with the governor’s office. There is an

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- February 8, 2007



argurment that it runs with the office and if it does, this isn't

an infringenment at all, he said. “A governor in their |ast two
weeks could offer up this pardon and then ... that person is no
longer in office, but you still have a governor who still has

that ability to pardon.”
MR. SVOBODNY opi ned that the authority is while in office.
4. 05: 44 PM

CHAI R FRENCH cl osed public testinony and asked if the conmttee
had di scussion or anmendnents to offer

4:05: 56 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOABKI made a notion to delete “application” and
i nsert “consideration” on page 2, line 7.

CHAIR FRENCH found no objection and announced that Amendnent 1
carries.

SENATOR Mc@QUI RE asked the sponsor to restate how he deci ded upon
180 days.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS replied that M. Jones from the board of
parole said it would take about that nmuch tinme to go through the
normal application process and contact the victim

SENATOR McGUI RE asked M. Jones if 120 days woul d be unfeasi bl e.

MR. JONES said he had reconsidered his original answer and was
ready to go on record stating that 120 days woul d be adequate.

4:07:47 PM
SENATOR MGUIRE made a notion to delete “180” and insert “120”
from page 1, lines 7 and 8 and any conform ng anendnents. She

explained the reason is to reflect customary deadlines that are
recogni zed in the | aw.

CHAIR FRENCH said his review of the bill indicates that “180”
appears just twice —on line 7 and line 8 of page 1

CHAI R FRENCH found no objection and announced that Anendnent 2
carries.

4:09: 01 PM

SENATOR McGUI RE made a notion to report SCS CSHB 69, as anended,
from commttee wth individual recomendations and attached
fiscal note(s).

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- February 8, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection SCS CSHB 69(JUD)
nmoved fromcomm ttee.

SB 45- PEACE OFFI CER CONVI CTED COF MJURDER

4:10: 44 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 45. [CSSB 45( STA)
was before the commttee.]

SENATOR DONALD OLSON, sponsor of SB 45, paraphrased the
fol | owi ng sponsor statenent:

SB 45 nmandates the maxi num sentence for first-degree
nmur der when committed by an on-duty peace officer.

This legislation derives fromthe Nome nurder of Sonya

| vanoff, a well-known and well-liked young girl in the
Bering Straits regi on. The i nvestigation and
subsequent convi ction of t he police of ficer

responsi ble for the nurder caused nuch anguish and
consternation for both the Ivanoff famly and the
region’s population in general.

At the police officer’s sentencing, the judge agreed
with the state prosecutor’s recomendation that the
maxi mum penalty should be inposed. H's rationale was
that while state | aw nandates the maxi num penalty when
a peace officer is nmurdered while acting in the |ine
of duty [AS 12.55.125(a)(1)], first-degree nurder by a
peace officer acting in a position of trust and public
protection was equally egregious.

SB 45 provides sentencing parity for the protection of
our guardians of civil law and order and for the
public trust in their activities and responsibilities.

4:12:28 PM
CHAI R FRENCH said he understands that the concerns that severa
| aw enforcenent agencies expressed during the state affairs
hearing were addressed through anendnents nmade in that
comm ttee.

SENATOR OLSON said that is correct. The state affairs CS has

support from the Departnent of Law, the Al aska Federation of
Nat i ves, Kawer ak, Inc., and the Bering Straits Native

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 8, 2007



Corporation. Also, the Departnment of Public Safety has no
obj ection to the anended versi on.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if police officers who use their
position of authority to commt other crines face increased
penalties for those crines as well.

SENATOR OLSON said he did not know.

4:13:47 PM

LORETTA BULLARD, President, Kawerak, Inc., said she assunes that
CSSB 45(STA) seeks to ensure that on-duty peace officers do not
have to second-guess using deadly force when it’s necessary to
protect the public or thenselves. She testified in support of
the concept enconpassed in the bill, but she questioned what
constitutes clear and convincing evidence that a peace officer
used his or her authority to facilitate a nurder. Perhaps M
Svobodny coul d provide information on that, she said.

M5. BULLARD recommended that any police officer who is convicted
of preneditated first-degree nurder should receive a nandatory
99-year sentence wthout possibility for parole or early
release. By virtue of their position in society and the public
trust, police officers should be held to the highest possible
standard. If the public trust and the oath to protect the public
is violated, the sentence ought to be comensurate to the
vi ol ati on.

4:16: 23 PM
CHAIR FRENCH closed public testinony and opened the bill for
di scussi on and anendnent fromthe conmittee menbers.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the bill differentiates between on-
duty and of f-duty.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that there was good testinony on that in
state affairs. He asked M. Svobodny to give that sane
i nformati on.

4:17:12 PM
RI CHARD SVOBODNY, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Crim nal
Di vision, Departnment of Law (DOL), said in the Sonya Ivanoff
case the conduct was both on-duty and off-duty. The new | anguage
includes both as long as the peace officer is using his or her
authority.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 8, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH recapped a distinction M. Svobodny drew before
about a hypothetical instance where a police officer was having
a donestic dispute with his wfe. The wife took the couple’'s
child to the police station to do a custody transfer and,
totally outside his role as a police officer, he nurdered his
wi fe. Although that would be a horrible crinme and the officer
woul d be punished, SB 45 does not address that sort of instance.
The intent is to get at the officer who uses the official badge,
car, or uniformto facilitate the conm ssion of nurder. That is
what brings the 99-year sentence to bear, he stated.

MR. SVOBODNY responded to an earlier question and said M. Owens
was also charged wth official msconduct, which is an A
m sdeneanor offense. The court severed that charge and found no
need to go forward with that prosecution after he was sentenced
for the nurder

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what woul d happen if the police officer
used his authority to gain information about soneone, but did
not use the information until he was off duty. “Wuld that be
swept in under this?” he asked.

MR. SVOBCODNY said a judge would need to be convinced with clear
and convincing evidence that the officer used his position of
authority to gain that information. Gven that exanple it could
go either way, he said.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Svobodny to remind the commttee of the
vari ous standards of proof.

MR. SVOBCODNY relayed that in crimnal cases there are four
standards of proof. 1) Probable cause is the standard that is
sonmething less than 50 percent and is used to obtain a search
warrant. 2) Preponderance of the evidence neans nore than 50
percent and is the standard that would be wused for an

evidentiary call. 3) dear and convi nci ng evi dence S
substantially greater than preponderance and is nore than 50
per cent . It firmMy establishes a position. 4) Beyond a

reasonabl e doubt is the standard that would cause a reasonabl e
person to hesitate in the inportant affairs of life.

4:21:34 PM
SENATOR HUGA NS stated for the record that he is an advocate of
the death sentence. From his perspective the bill falls short

because “singling out different agencies of people is a road I
woul d prefer we don’t go down too often.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- February 8, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH asked if the conmittee nenbers had questions,
comments or anmendnents to offer.

SENATOR THERRI AULT nade a notion to delete Section 1, which
names a section in statute.

SENATOR McGUI RE obj ect ed.

A roll call was taken on the notion to delete Section 1 from SB
45. Senators Therriault, Huggins and Chair French voted in favor
and Senators Wel echowski and MGQuire voted against. Therefore
Amendnent 1 carri ed.

CHAIR FRENCH found no further amendnents and asked the wll of
the comm tt ee.

SENATOR THERRI AULT nade a notion to report CSSB 45(JUD) from
committee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
note(s). There being no objection, it was so ordered.

SB 69-ClVIL LEGAL SERVI CES FUND

4: 25: 18 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced t he consi derati on of SB 69.

SENATOR McGUI RE, sponsor of SB 69, stated that the sanme bil
passed the House unaninously tw ce and Senator Wel echowski is
the only commttee nenber who has not heard it before.

SB 69 would create a civil legal services fund that would be
funded by provisions required wunder AS 09.17.020(j). This
section requires that 50 percent of all punitive damge awards
are turned over to the state and deposited into the general
fund. 6

SENATOR MQ@iire said the Alaska Legal Services Corporation
(ALSC) has helped |owinconme Al askans with civil legal needs
since the md 60s. In prior years the legislature provided up to
$1.2 mllion in funding, but during the Mirkowski adm nistration
the funding di sappeared altogether. That is a travesty for those
who believe that access to the civil legal systemis inportant,
she st at ed.

SENATOR McGUI RE rel ayed that ALSC has provided civil |egal funds

for citizens who don't have the incone to fight landlord tenant
cases, Social Security cases, Medicaid cases and others.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 8, 2007



Currently ALSC receives sonme nunicipal and federal grants, but
overall it has been very difficult to operate fromyear-to-year.

4:28:55 PM

ANDY HARRI NGTON, Executive Director, Alaska Legal Services
(ALS), Fairbanks, described how additional noney would help
4,800 individuals or 1,500 famlies. Mst of the cases involve
custody or divorce litigation and about two-thirds of the
donmestic relations cases are violence related. \When representing
victimse of domestic violence, the highest priority is getting
the victinms civil protection to help break the violence cycle
and mnimze any exposure or role nodeling to children. The
second highest are landlord tenant cases where famlies have
| ost shelter. Disability cases, usually involving problens with
the Social Security Admnistration, are the next highest
foll owed by collection cases.

MR. HARRI NGTON said ALS does not represent people in crimna
proceedi ngs because those cases carry a right for an appointed
attorney. Part of the ALS mssion is to help people solve
problems through civil proceedings thereby reducing the
likelihood that the issue wll evolve into a «crimna
proceeding. This is a sort of preventative nedicine, he said.

MR. HARRI NGTON expl ai ned that nost of the case work is in state
court rather than federal court, but nost of the funding is
federal. ALS also provides a service to the court system when it
represents |low incone people because a Ilitigant who s
representing hinfherself invariably slows the system for that
and subsequent cases.

MR. HARRI NGTON said that for a nunber of reasons SB 69 is a very
good bill and ALS strongly supports its passage.

4:33:38 PM

CHAIR FRENCH noted that the conmittee had a supporting letter
from the American Association of Retired Persons (AARP) that
Marie Darlin signed.

CHAI R FRENCH asked Senator MCQuire if SB 69 is exactly the sane
bill that passed the Senate |ast year.

SENATOR McGUI RE sai d yes.

CHAIR FRENCH cl osed public testinony and asked for comment or
di scussi on anong the conm ttee nenbers.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- February 8, 2007



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about a House floor amendnent that was
offered that day. It adds an additional noney source from Rule
9(b) (1) of the Al aska Rules of Adm nistration.

4:35:12 PM
SENATOR McGQUIRE said the notivation to get nore revenue put
aside into the fund is well placed, but she opposes the

amendnment. It calls for $75 of each 9(b)(1) filing fee to be set
aside for the fund. That would place a financial burden on the
court system and she prefers the nore conservative approach.

4:35: 53 PM

DOUG WOOLI VER, Administrative Attorney, Alaska Court System
stated that the Court doesn’'t generally take a position in
support or opposition of a bill. He allowed that the amendnent
was sonewhat confusing and he believes it was msdrafted. The
second section refers to a court rule change and a statutory
reference neither of which are in the bill.

SENATOR McGUI RE said the anmendnment may apply to a concept that
was di scussed |ast year. She asked M. Woliver to explain what
the $75 anpbunt would represent in terns of filing fees to the
Al aska Court System

MR. WOOLIVER said the anendnent mght refer to an earlier
version, which would have increased the court filing fees for
certain cases and those fees would have funded the civil |[egal
services account. The Court typically does not support
surcharges on filing fees or increases on filing fees to support
prograns that are not related to the cost of bringing cases
court. It believes that many of the prograns are worthwhile and
it agrees with M. HARRI NGTON s conments about the burdens that
Pro Se litigants place on the court. Nonethel ess those prograns
are nore appropriately funded through the general fund rather
than through a tax on court systemusers, he stated.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for clarification that 9(b)(1) is the
regular civil litigation filing fee.

MR. WOOLIVER said it is.
CHAI R FRENCH announced that he would hold SB 69 in commttee.

SB 64- DI SCLOSURES & ETHI CS

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consi derati on of SB 64.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 16- February 8, 2007



4:39:20 PM

DAVI D JONES, Assistant Attorney General, G vil Di vi si on,
Opi ni ons, Appeals and Ethics, Departnment of Law, stated that SB
64 proposes inmprovenents to Alaska' s disclosure |aws and ethics
| aws. Disclosure inprovenents would apply to the three branches
of governnment, to candidates and political groups, and to sone
muni ci pal officers. Inprovenents to the “Ethics Act” [Al aska
Executive Branch Ethics Act] would apply only to executive
branch nenbers.

Di sclosure inprovenents include requirenents for: electronic
filing with APOC (Alaska Public Ofices Conmmssion); nore
detailed legislative financial disclosures; disclosures from
former legislators and certain others. Sections 1, 4, and 7
require electronic filing; Sections 2 and 6 require nore detai
in the financial disclosures that are filed with APOCC and
Sections 3 and 5 require certain fornmer officials to file
financial disclosures within 90 days of |eaving office.

The four inprovenents to the Ethics Act appear in Sections 8-11.
Section 8 defines an insignificant business interest; Section 9
bans nost gifts from | obbyists; Section 10 tightens the existing
restrictions on types of work that fornmer executive branch
menbers may perform within two years of |eaving state service;
and Section 11 extends the reach of the existing ban on | obbying
to apply to deputy commssioners and others who held
policymaking positions in the governor’s office. “That ban
applies under existing |law for one year,” he said.

4:42: 05 PM
MR. JONES explained the bill sections as foll ows:

Section 1 on page 2 requires electronic filing of canpaign
di scl osure reports that candidates, groups and others file wth
APCC. In extraordinary circunstances APOC could grant an
exception in extraordinary circunstances.

Section 2, 3, and 4 on pages 2 and 3 apply to the legislative
branch. Section 2 requires nore detail in the financia
di sclosures that legislators, public nenbers of the Select
Commttee on Legislative Ethics, and legislative directors file
with APCC. For all inconme exceeding $1,000, the disclosures nust
descri be the amount received, the nunber of hours spent to earn
the income, and details regarding the services that were
provided. He noted that Section 3 of SB 20 approaches that
subj ect sonewhat differently.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 8, 2007



Section 3 requires former legislators, public nenbers of the
Select Conmittee on Legislative Ethics, and forner |egislative
directors to file financial disclosures with APOC within 90 days
of leaving service. He noted that Section 2 of SB 20 addresses
t hat subj ect sonewhat differently.

Section 4 requires legislators, public nenbers of the Select
Conmttee on Legislative Ethics, and legislative directors to
electronically file financial di scl osures wth APQCC The
conmmi ssi on coul d gr ant exceptions in extraordi nary
ci rcunst ances.

4:44:17 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if a FAX is regarded as an electronic
subm ttal

MR JONES replied the intent is for Internet subm ssions.
Currently APOC currently enters the data before it can be
i ncorporated onto the APOC website.

CHAIR FRENCH asked how rmany candi dates do not file
electronically, how long it takes APOC to enter that data, and
how long it takes before the data is available online.

4:45: 31 PM

TAMMWY  KEMPTON, Project Coordinator, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), said about half of +the candidates file
el ectronically. [ Ms. Kenmpton subsequently sent a letter
correcting her statenment. About 15 percent of the candi dates
file electronically.] She did not know how many hours it takes
to enter the information into the database, but this year for
the first time all the seven-day reports were online prior to
t he el ection.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if APOC hires tenporary staff at election
time to do data entry.

M5. KEMPTON said yes when funds are available and APOCC did
receive extra noney this last election cycle.

CHAIR FRENCH said he would like to get information on the |eve
of burden on the commssion including the hours it takes to
enter the data and the tine span between the filing deadline and
when the information is avail abl e online.

M5. KEMPTON agreed to provide the information.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 8, 2007



SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the rationale is the workload or that
candi dates are exploiting the system

MR. JONES said part of the rationale is to avoid gamesnmanship,
but largely the idea is to make the information available to the
public as quickly as possible. The information is inportant in
hel pi ng the public make i nforned deci sions when voti ng.

SENATOR HUGGE NS expressed the view that nost people don’t check
that information very closely, but activists mght. He then
asked what woul d constitute an extraordinary circunstance.

MR. JONES said that is intentionally vague because there are a
spectrum of circunstances that mght justify exceptions to the
electronic filing requirenent. Thus it seens appropriate to give
APCC the discretion to decide when extraordinary circunstances
exist. He clarified that the intention is that reasons such as,
“I don't feel like it.” or “lI prefer to do it by hand.” would
not be acceptabl e.

SENATOR HUGGE NS di scl osed that he’'s proud that his wife does his
filing and he mght be in trouble if she weren't available. “I
don’t know whet her that would be extraordinary or not,” he said.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if it’s correct that handwitten reports are
available at the conmssion office the day after the filing
deadline so a person could request that the information be faxed
or copi ed.

M5. KEMPTON said that is the current system Wen talking about
the public seeing these reports, she said it’s inportant to note
that only canpaign reports are currently available online.
Legi sl ative financial di scl osure reports, public official
di sclosure reports, and the |obbyist and enployer of |obbyist
di scl osure reports are not avail able online, she stated.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if this bill changes the distinction between
candi date reports and the ot her disclosures.

M5. KEMPTON said SB 64 would make electronic filing for all
those reports mandatory. Currently APOC has the ability to
require electronic filing from |obbyists and enployers of
| obbyi sts. APOC is working on inplenenting that, she said.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if electronic filing would be required for
all the legislative disclosures that APOC receives.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- February 8, 2007



M5. KEMPTON said yes.

4:54: 01 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the current requirement is that
canpaign disclosure information nust be received on the
speci fied day or postmarked on the specified day.

M5. KEMPTON said when filing by mail the current requirenent is
that it is postmarked on the specified day.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that sone reports cone in days or a
week later if the mail systemis used.

M5. KEMPTON agr eed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT disclosed that he is treasurer of his
canpai gns and he does the reports by hand.

CHAI R FRENCH di scl osed that he pays soneone to file his reports
and that person files electronically.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about the sophistication of the system

M5. KEMPTON expl ained that the system will have drop-down nenus
to select the desired report. Currently candi dates have two ways
of filing electronically. One is ELFS (Electronic Filing System
and the other is by neans of a spreadsheet. APCC supplies a |ist
of field names to set up the spreadsheet such that the
information can be inported into the APOC database. SB 64 wl|
provide a third way, which “hopefully will be the best ever,’
she sai d.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if he could start a report, save it to
a different location, and then return to conplete the data entry
before submtting the report

M5. KEMPTON sai d absol utely.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if each candi date has a PI N nunber.

M5. KEMPTON said that is her understanding.

SENATOR HUGA NS commented that this is a worthy goal, but the
terns are onerous considering that 50 percent of the people are
currently out of conpliance wth concept. [The commttee

subsequent |y | ear ned t hat 85 per cent do not file
el ectronically.]

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- February 8, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI commented that a significant upgrade is
needed in the ELFS program “The software is not intuitive, it
is really inadequate,” he said.

M5. KEMPTON said the new systemis nothing |ike ELFS.

4:59:19 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced he would hold SB 64 in comm ttee.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 4:59:29 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- February 8, 2007



